
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The November 2015 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held on Thursday, November 19, 2015 at 6:00 pm at the Horseheads Free Library 
405 S. Main St.  Horseheads, NY  14845.   The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you 
are unable to attend, please inform Mr. Roberts (271-9625), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. 
Shaw (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2015-61)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document #2015-62)  
 b)  Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document #2014-63)  
6.  Correspondence  
7.  President’s report.   
8.  Director’s Report.  
9.  Committee reports:   

a)  Executive Committee (Roberts)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-64) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document #2014-65) (To be distributed) 

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Muldoon) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document #2014-66) 
d) Personnel Committee (Kappanadze)  
Consent Items: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 

10. Call for Executive Session 
11.  Old business   
12.  New business 
 a) Discussion of STLS Annual Meeting and Conference (Rogan) 
13.  Period for public expression  
14.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


(Minutes of the OCTOBER 15, 2015 meeting of the Chemung County Library District Board of 
Trustees. Document #2015-61) 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Richard Roberts. Present were Pat Silvernail, 
Ann Hayes, Georgia Reynolds, Bonnie Chollet, John Schamel, Michael Muldoon, Marge 
Kappanadze, Phyllis Rogan, Rachel Dworkin, and Jim Hare. Excused:  Tim Blandford, Juan Jones 
and Jessica Roberts. Also present were Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Director and Joan Santulli, 
the Library District’s Administrative Assistant. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the September 2015 meeting (Document #2015-55) were presented for 
board review. The minutes were approved as amended by unanimous consent.   
 
Financial  Report. The September 30, 2015 Financial Report (Document #2015-56) was presented 
for board review.  Mr. Schamel made note of the interest income which represents a total for the year 
to date.  CCLD has better access to our funds (in an ICS Sweep Account) and the interest rates are 
higher than with the CDARs program. County Costs are over budget. Several projects have been 
completed by the County and CCLD is only charged for materials. By unanimous consent the 
September 30, 2015 Financial Report was approved as distributed and will be filed for audit.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2015-57). Mr. Schamel reported that the bill lists include the 
second payment to Elmira Structures in the amount of $42,655 for the Elevator Project. By 
unanimous consent, the board authorizes the payment of the unpaid bills dated 10/14/15 – General 
Fund $16,811.43 and Grant Fund $893.17 and dated 10/15/15 General Fund $42,655 as distributed.   

 
Correspondence.   Mr. Shaw fielded only a couple of phone calls during the month regarding the 
Promenade.  The situation is definitely better. 

 
President’s Report.  Mr. Roberts reported that the dedication of the Earle Catlin Meeting Room at 
the Horseheads Library was a nice ceremony.  The Horseheads Foundation funded the ceremony and 
did an awesome job of planning and putting it all together.  
 
Mr. Roberts stated that the STLS Annual Meeting was well done - there was a lot of good 
information provided for trustees.  There are currently two vacancies on the STLS board of trustees 
for representatives of Chemung County that the CCLD board needs to nominate people for the 
positions.  
 
Director’s Report.   Mr. Shaw discussed the following: 
CONSENT ITEM:  Approval of donations from several service and support agencies. Ms. Reynolds 
moved, seconded by Mr. Schamel to approve the donation of $20,000 from the Public Library 
Foundation of Chemung County (HH); the donation of $20,000 from the Steele Memorial Library 
Foundation; the donation of $1,500 from the Friends of CCLD; the donation of $1,159.44 from the 
Big Flats Library Advocates to benefit the Big Flats Library and the donation of $1,439.59 from the 
Horseheads ELKS Club to benefit the Horseheads Library. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
CCLD Issues.  There is no word on the changes to the Legislation.  Sara Latin form Senator O'Mara's 
office has stated that the County Board of Elections will want to sit down before January to figure out 
the timing of the CCLD board seats.  It was stated that if the Legislation is going to be changed, it 
should include a clause that allows the Library District to appoint a member at large if a 
representative from a specific district cannot be found to serve on the board.  The Energy Audit 
continues to be “in process”.  There is no deadline for this project.  
Programs.  This Saturday the Summer Reading Club kids will get recognized at the Jackal’s game.  
Ms. Ackerman and Ms. Peel will have a table at the event to pass out flyers of upcoming events.  



Elevator Project at Steele.  Extra kudos should be given to Library District staff at Steele for the extra 
effort they are putting forth in dealing with issues during the elevator installation. A special thank you 
to our Caretaker, Lewis Murray, for his extra help during this time. 
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last month were 
submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to the board 
(Document #2015-58). Nothing new to report.  

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2015-59). A decision was made to hold the next 
meeting on Tuesday, November 10, 2015 due to the Veteran’s Day holiday. 
 
Mr. Shaw reported that regarding the Budget Vote, CCLD is sending out one tweet per day that 
includes a timeline of the major events in the Library District’s history.  Three short videos will be 
launched on the website before Election Day that will cover Materials and Circulation, Online 
Services and Technology.  News releases, blog and Facebook posts continue to be released. The 
proposed budget can be viewed on the Library District’s website.   
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee meeting was 
presented in writing to the board (Document #2015-60). It was reported that there is a delay in the 
Elevator Project due to the fact that the subfloor may contain asbestos.  It will be tested this week and 
if the test is positive, abatement could cost as much as $3,000 to $5,000. Information will be 
forthcoming once the test results are received. There is adequate funding in reserves to cover the cost 
of this testing and abatement.  Bathroom Project at Steele. New York State has sent the first 
installment of funding for the project.  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to accept the 
funding from New York State in the amount of $88,695 for the above mentioned project. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved. Staff Break Room.  The Committee agreed with Mr. Shaw that the break 
room at the Steele Library is sorely in need of minor repairs and updating.  This project should be 
considered if there is any funding left from the Boiler project at Steele.  Mr. Shaw reported that New 
York State is now requiring that the cooling tower at the Steele Library be checked once a month for 
Legionnaires Disease. This will cost CCLD an approximate $1,000 per year.  
  
Personnel Committee.  Ms. Kappanadze stated that the Committee is working on minor changes to 
the Director’s contract – mostly changes in the language. They met this week and did a complete 
audit of the Director’s benefit time. The board will receive their report next month.  
 
CONSENT ITEM – Approval of Personnel Actions. (Appendix C). Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded 
by Mr. Hare to approve the Personnel Actions as submitted to the board.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Kappanadze to move into Executive Session to discuss a 
Personnel issue.  Mr. Hare moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail to come out of Executive Session.  
 
Old Business. Mr. Shaw reported that the new scheduling program “PeopleWhere” has given the 
staff some growing pains.  Snags are still being worked out.  
 
Ms. Reynolds reported that the Dedication Service for the Earle Catlin Meeting Room was a great 
success with over 90 people in attendance.  A special thank you to Mr. Frank and the staff at the 
Horseheads Library for all their efforts in making this event a success.  
 



Mr. Shaw informed the board of his anticipated budget meetings at the various branch libraries. He 
plans to visit during one of their programs to be able to speak to more people about the upcoming 
budget vote.   Regarding fund raising for CCLD, it was mentioned that in the past, the Director had 
sent out specific letters to individuals known to financially support the library requesting their 
continued support.  The purchase of the new Bookmobile is an example of how well this has worked 
in the past. Ms. Kappanadze left the meeting at this time. 
 
New Business.  Ms. Rogan spoke about the recent trustee workshop at the Watson Homestead. 
Entitled “Connections not collections”.  The main topic of discussion was that the community should 
be contacted in person to determine what residents feel is needed in our community or what they 
would like to see.  This input can assist the Library District in developing programs, etc that meets 
the needs of the community.  She will send out a webpage for trustees to view that talk about libraries 
transforming communities.  This will be discussed at a future meeting.  
 
It was reported that the Horseheads Friends’ book sale was a success.  Their group is also looking for 
ideas for different avenues to raise more money to support the library.  
 
Public Expression.  None. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:12pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held on 
Thursday, November 19th, 2015 at 6:00pm at the HORSEHEADS FREE LIBRARY, 405 South 
Main Street, Horseheads, New York.  
 















Document #2015-64 
 
Report of the November 4th, 2015 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
Attending the meeting from the Executive Committee were Richard Roberts, Rachel Dworkin, 
Marge Kappanadze and Georgia Reynolds and Ronald Shaw and Joan Santulli, CCLD management.  
Other board members in attendance were Jim Hare, Ann Hayes, Pat Silvernail, Phyllis Rogan, and 
Bonnie Chollet. The meeting opened at 6pm.   
 
President’s Report.  Mr. Roberts reported that the voters passed the vote on the Library District's 
2016 Proposed Budget with 71.2% voting yes. He congratulated the board members who won the 
race for their District.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Hayes to approve the Unpaid Bill lists 
dated November 4, 2015 as follows:  General Fund - $45,382.44 and Grant Fund - $1,364.93. The 
General Fund bills include the 3rd payment to Elmira Structures for the Elevator Project. VOTE: 
Unanimously Approved 
 
Director’s Report. Mr. Shaw reported the following: 
*Received sample wording for payment of invoices mid-month as submitted by Mr. Hare from the 
Water Board By-Laws.  This could be considered along with other changes to the Legislation. 
*Received a letter from Leigh Young, Big Flats Library Advocates, requesting that the Big Flats 
Library be open on Saturdays during the winter months.  Mr. Shaw stated that when the library was 
open on Saturdays, the day was only 5% of the circ for the District and 0% of programming for 14% 
of open hours.  
*CSEA reps are questioning the job descriptions that were submitted to Civil Service. 
*Rich Davis from the Library District's auditing firm, EFP Group, has requested to meet with Mr. 
Shaw since their 3-year contract with CCLD has expired.  RFP's will be sent out for proposals to 
audit CCLD finances for 2015 and on. 
*Tuesday, November 10th, Mr. Shaw will be conducting Mock Interviews with students from the 
Horseheads School District.  
 
A suggestion was made that a "power point" be created that can be taken to service clubs and other 
community based meetings that will focus on the many services provided by our CCLD libraries.  
 
Ms. Chollet reported that she was in Ithaca recently when they held their Harry Potter Fest.  It was a 
huge success.  She stated she would like to see our libraries create such an event.  Mr. Shaw stated 
that CCLD held such an event a couple of years ago.  Ms. Chollet also brought an advertisement 
regarding the MiniMaker Fair being held at Barnes  & Noble stores this weekend.  Mr. Shaw stated 
that our IT Department is participating in this event at our local B&N store in Big Flats.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:30pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, December 2nd, 2015 at 6pm in the Petrie 
Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.   
 



Document #2015-65 
 
Report of the November 10th, 2015 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Rick Roberts, Georgia Reynolds, and Jack 
Schamel. Also attending was Joan Santulli, CCLD Administration.  The meeting opened at 
8:00am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the October 31st, 2015 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report 
will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the 11/10/15 Unpaid Bills Detail for the General Fund bills totaling 
$23,480.58. Of interest to note is the payment to Sayles & Evans which not only includes the 
monthly bill but the charge in the amount of $12,500 for the review and revising of all CCLD 
policies. The Unpaid Bills Detail will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, December 9th, 2015 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library.   



Document #2015-66 
 
Report of the November 4th, 2015 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Mr. Muldoon, Mr. Hare, Ms. Hayes, Ms. Reynolds and Mr. 
Roberts. Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Management.   
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

o Elevator Project at Steele.  Asbestos has been found in the floor of the elevator. O'Rourke has tested 
it and submitted an invoice in the amount of$685.50 which the Committee approved to send to the 
Exec Committee for payment.  Abatement will be required and will be completed by Sunstream for a 
sum of $3,600.  CCLD will also need to pay an extra $1,000 for third party monitoring.  Mr. Shaw 
has scheduled the removal of the asbestos to begin after hours on Friday, November 13th.  The 
Steele Library will be closed on Saturday the 14th.  Everything should be clear for the library to re-
open on Monday, November 16th.  The Committee reviewed an invoice in the amount of $21,612.50 
from Elmira Structures, their 3rd installment for work on the elevator. This invoice will also be sent 
to the Exec Committee for payment.  

o Bathroom Project at the Steele Library. Mr. Muldoon submitted a sample RFP to hire a Project 
Manager for this project.  He recommended sending it to 3 or 4 companies - Foor & Associates, 
Hunt Engineering, AJH Design and possibly Barn Livin'.  The RFP will be sent out November 6th 
and will be due back to CCLD by December 1st. Review of the RFP's will take place between 
December 2nd and December 9th with selection of the Project Manager to take place at the 
December 17th board meeting.   

o Chiller Project at Steele. DASNY has requested further proof of funding for the project (a copy of 
our bank statements) and needs a more restrictive estimate from a contractor. 

o  Taitem Energy Audit. NYSERDA has stated that CCLD will receive the energy audit within 2 
weeks. 

o SCRLC. The South Central Regional Library Council has reported receipt of the Library Design 
Award for the renovations of the Horseheads Library.  A total of $159,000 was expended in 3 phases 
of renovation.  

 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:47pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, November 4th, 
2015 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2015-11
	Document 2015-61
	Document 2015-62
	Document 2015-63
	Document 2015-64
	Document 2015-65
	Document 2015-66

